

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING ARTICLE XII OF CHAPTER 42- TRAFFIC AND MOTOR VEHICLES REGULATIONS AND REPLACING WITH A NEW ARTICLE XII, STOPPING, STANDING OR PARKING RESTRICTED OR PROHIBITED ON CERTAIN STREET REGULATIONS TO THE RAYTOWN MUNICIPAL CODE

WHEREAS, the current version of Article XII of Chapter 42 of the Raytown Municipal Code lists all of the areas within the City where no parking or restricted parking signs are or should be placed; however, the street descriptions do not adequately match where the no parking signs or restricted parking signs are actually placed; and

WHEREAS, to protect public health, safety and general welfare of the people in the City it is necessary to amend the Raytown Municipal Code;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF RAYTOWN, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1 – AMENDMENT. Chapter 42, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, Article XII, Stopping, Standing or Parking Restricted or Prohibited on Certain Streets is hereby repealed and replaced with a new Chapter 42, Article XII as attached hereto as Exhibit “A” to the Raytown Municipal Code.

SECTION 2 – REPEAL OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed.

SECTION 3 – SEVERABILITY CLAUSE. The provisions of this ordinance are severable and if any provision hereof is declared invalid, unconstitutional or unenforceable, such determination shall not affect the validity of the remainder of this ordinance.

SECTION 4 – EFFECTIVE DATE. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its passage and approval.

BE IT REMEMBERED that the above was read two times by heading only, **PASSED and ADOPTED** by a majority of the Board of Aldermen and **APPROVED** by the Mayor of the City of Raytown, Jackson County, Missouri, this 2nd day of July, 2024.

Michael McDonough, Mayor

ATTEST:

Teresa M. Henry, City Clerk

Approved as to Form:

Jennifer M. Baird, City Attorney

Exhibit A

ARTICLE XII. - STOPPING, STANDING OR PARKING RESTRICTED OR PROHIBITED ON CERTAIN STREETS

Sec. 42-372. - Application of chapter.

The provisions of this chapter prohibiting the standing or parking of a vehicle shall apply at all times or at those times herein specified or as indicated on official signs except when it is necessary to stop a vehicle to avoid conflict with other traffic or in compliance with the directions of a police officer or official traffic control device.

(Code 1969, § 23-150; Ord. No. 298-70, 10-6-1970; Ord. No. 2364-82, § 37, 3-2-1982)

Sec. 42-373. - Regulations not exclusive.

The provisions of this chapter imposing a time limit on parking shall not relieve any person from the duty to observe other and more restrictive provisions prohibiting or limiting the stopping, standing, or parking of vehicles in specified places or at specified times.

(Code 1969, § 23-151; Ord. No. 298-70, 10-6-1970; Ord. No. 2364-82, § 37, 3-2-1982)

Sec. 42-374. - Parking prohibited at all times on certain streets.

When signs are erected giving notice thereof, no person shall park a vehicle at any time upon any of the following streets:

- (1) ~~(1) — Blue Ridge Extension and Blue Ridge cut-off from south city limits to north city limits Boulevard from 51st Street to 59th Street~~ (both sides of street).
- (2) **West side of Blue Ridge Boulevard from 59th Street to 60th Terrace.**
- (3) **East side of Blue Ridge Boulevard from 228 feet north of the centerline of 63rd Street to 648 feet north of the centerline of 63rd Street.**
- (4) **North side of 60th Terrace from Blue Ridge Boulevard to 128 feet west of the centerline of Blue Ridge Boulevard.**
- (5) **South side of 63rd Street from the intersection of Cedar Ave and west 275'.**
- (6) **Blue Ridge Cutoff from 66th Street to north city limits (both sides of street).**
- (7) **Blue Ridge Blvd. from 75th Street to 66th Street (both sides of street).**
- (8) ~~(2) — 63rd Street between Cedar Street and Woodson Street (both sides of street).~~ **moved to #8**
- (9) ~~(3) — 67th Street between Hardy Street and Harvard Street (both sides of street).~~ **Moved to #9**
- (10) **West side of Elm Street from 64th Street to 64th Terrace.**
- ~~(4) — East side of Elm Street from 70th Terrace south 150 feet (in front of fire station).~~
- (11) ~~(5)~~ **East side of Lane Street from 59th Street south through Colman-Livengood Park to a point 152 feet north of 61st Street; and along the west side of Lane Street from 59th Street south to a point 320 feet south of 59th Street; and Lane Street from 61st Street north to a point 177 feet north of 61st Street. Moved to #11**
- (12) ~~(6)~~ **The state right-of-way alongside U.S. 50 Highway westbound alongside from Elm Street to Ditzler Street of U.S. 350 Highway (all sides) from west city limit to east city limit.**

- (13) ~~(7)~~ Raytown Trafficway (on each side) from 59th Street to 64th Terrace.
- (14) ~~(8)~~ Raytown Road from the north city limits to 59th Street and from 64th Terrace to ~~76th Terrace~~ **67th Street** (both sides of street).
- (15) **Raytown Road from 67th Street to 87th Street, and south 200' to the city limits.**
- (16) **83rd Street (on each side) from James A Reed Rd. to Raytown Road (bicycle lanes).**
- (17) **83rd Street (on each side) from Raytown Road to MO 350 Hwy (bicycle lanes).**
- (18) ~~(9)~~ 55th Street (on each side) ~~at Lane Ave. from Blue Ridge cut-off to the west city limits.~~
- (19) **South side of 60th Street from Raytown Road to cul-de-sac.**
- (20) ~~(10)~~ South side of 61 st Street from Raytown Road to ~~Chicago, Rock Island and Pacific Railroad right-of-way.~~
- (21) ~~(11)~~ North side of 81 st Street from Raytown Road east to ~~Ash Ave. the entry drive of Minor Smith Park.~~
- ~~(12) — West side of Blue Ridge Boulevard from 59th Street to a point 100 feet north of the centerline of 60th Terrace. Moved to #2~~
- (22) ~~(13)~~ **South side of 66th Street between-in front of 9817 E. 66th Street. Raytown Road and 300 feet west of Raytown Road (both sides of the street).**
- (23) ~~(14)~~ The east and west side of Sterling from 83rd Street to 85th Street.
- (24) ~~(15)~~ **East side of Maple from 73rd Street to 350 Highway.**
- ~~(16) — East side of Blue Ridge Boulevard from 228 feet north of the centerline of 63rd Street to 648 feet north of the centerline of 63rd Street. (moved to #3~~
- ~~(17) — South side of 51 st Street from 110 feet east of the centerline of Blue Ridge Boulevard to 230 feet east of the centerline of Blue Ridge Boulevard.~~
- (25) ~~(18)~~ ~~West side of northern~~ **Northern** from 56th Street to 56th Terrace.
- (26) ~~(19)~~ The west side of Crisp from centerline of 53rd Street to **50 feet** ~~150 feet~~ north of the centerline.
- ~~(20) — Northern from 56th Street to 56th Street Terrace both sides of the street).~~
- (27) **87th Street from James A Reed Rd. to Raytown Road (bicycle lanes).**
- (28) **West side of James A Reed Road between 85th Terrace and 87th Street.**
- (29) **Both sides of 85th Place just west of Ditzler.**
- (30) **Both sides of Lane Drive between 8472 and 8482 Lane Drive.**
- (31) **South side of 79th Street from 170' east of Spring Valley Rd. to 270' east of Spring Valley Rd.**
- (32) **North side of 79th Street from Elm Street to Crescent Ave.**
- (33) **South side of 79th Street from Maple Ave. to Crescent Ave.**

- (34) South side of 79th Street from Crescent Ave. to Arlington Ave.
- (35) Both sides of 79th Street from Arlington Ave to Raytown Rd.
- (36) East side of Harris Ave. from 83rd Street and south 100'.
- (37) South side of 79th Street from Harris Ave. and west for 170'.
- (38) North side of 78th Terrace from Hedges Ave. and west for 170'.
- (39) North side of 78th Street from Hardy Ave. and west for 670'.
- (40) Both sides of 78th Terrace from 350 Hwy. and west for 225'.
- (41) East side of Woodson Rd. from 76th Terrace to 77th Terrace.
- (42) West side of Woodson Rd. from 75th Street and south 635'.
- (43) East side of Overton Ave. from 350 Hwy and south 270'.
- (44) West side of Overton Ave. from 350 Hwy and south 670'.
- (45) East side of Ditzler Ave. from Gregory Blvd. and south 240'.
- (46) North side of Gregory Blvd. from Blue Ridge Blvd. to Kentucky Ave.
- (47) North side of 69th Street from 350 Hwy. to Hunter St.
- (48) South side of 67th Street from Hunter St. and east for 30'.
- (49) East side of Kentucky Ave. from 67th Street and north 125'.
- (50) West side of Kentucky Ave. from 67th Street and north 20'.
- (51) North side of 67th Street from 9716 to 9800 E. 67th Street.
- (52) South side of Lakeview Drive from Ralston Ave. to Crisp Ave.
- (53) North side of Lakeview Drive from Sterling Ave. and east 125'.
- (54) North side of 64th Street from Evanston Ave. and west 50'.
- (55) West side of Evanston Ave from 64th Street and north 80'.
- (56) East side of Hadley Street from 62nd Street and south 30'.
- (57) South side of 61st Street from Blue Ridge Blvd. and east for 530'.
- (58) East side of Hunter Street between 6011 & 6015 Hunter St.
- (59) Both sides of 59th Street between Blue Ridge Cutoff and Raytown Road.
- (60) Both sides of Raytown Road between Raytown Trafficway and 59th Street.
- (61) Both sides of 59th Street between Raytown Road and Blue Ridge Blvd. (bicycle lanes).
- (62) Both sides of 58th Terrace from Cedar Ave and west 180'.
- (63) Both sides of Raytown Road from 325' north of 63rd Street to 59th Street.
- (64) The dead-end of Laurel Ave, at 5618 & 5619 Laurel Ave.

(Code 1969, § 23-152; Ord. No. 298-70, 10-6-1970; Ord. No. 443-71, § 1, 7-20-1971; Ord. No. 491-71, § 1, 11-2-1971; Ord. No. 656, § 1, 12-19-1971; Ord. No. 739-73, § 2, 7-17-1973; Ord. No. 952-74, § 8, 10-15-1974; Ord. No. 1571-77, § 1, 8-16-1977; Ord. No. 1890-79, § 1, 6-5-1979; Ord. No. 2364-82, § 37, 3-2-1982; Ord. No. 3220-88, § 1, 4-19-1988; Ord. No. 3361-89, § 1, 2-8-1989; Ord. No. 3856-93, § 1, 2-2-1993; Ord. No. 3908-93, § 1, 8-17-1993; Ord. No. 3934-93, § 1, 11-3-1993; Ord. No. 3940-93, § 1, 11-16-1993; Ord. No. 4055-95, § 1, 1-3-1995)

Sec. 42-375. - Parking restricted during certain hours on certain streets.

(a) *Generally*. When signs are erected in each block giving notice thereof, no person shall park a vehicle between the hours specified by ordinance on any day except Sunday and public holidays within the districts or upon any of the streets described by ordinance.

(b) *Specific hours*. In accordance with this section and when signs are erected giving notice thereof, no person shall park a vehicle within the hours specified herein on any day except Sundays and public holidays within the district or upon any of the streets or parts of streets as set forth herein as follows:

(1) *Two-hour parking*. Stopping, standing or parking for more than two hours between 7:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. is prohibited on the following streets or parts of streets:

a. **South side of 63rd Street, between Evanston Ave. and Raytown Road.** ~~Arlington Street and Cedar Street.~~

b. Raytown Road, **east side of 63rd Street from 140' south of 63rd Street to 63rd Terrace**, ~~between 62nd Street and 64th Street (except as otherwise provided herein).~~

c. East side of Blue Ridge Boulevard from 168 feet north of the centerline of 63rd Street to 228 feet north of the centerline of 63rd Street.

d. West side of Blue Ridge Boulevard from 311 feet north of the centerline of 63rd Street to 571 feet north of the centerline of 63rd Street.

e. West side of Blue Ridge Boulevard from 1135 feet north of the centerline of 63rd Street to 1253 feet north of the centerline of 63rd Street.

~~f. North side of 60th Terrace from 22 feet west of the centerline of Blue Ridge Boulevard to 128 feet west of the centerline of Blue Ridge Boulevard.~~

~~f. g.~~ South side of 60th Terrace from **Raytown Road to 172 feet west of the centerline of Blue Ridge Boulevard to 404 feet west of the centerline of Blue Ridge Boulevard.**

~~h. North side of 61 st Terrace from 180 feet west of the centerline of Blue Ridge Boulevard to the east right-of-way line of Raytown Road.~~

~~i. South side of 61 st Terrace from 344 feet west of the centerline of Blue Ridge Boulevard to the east right-of-way line of Raytown Road.~~

(2) *Limited parking*. Standing, stopping or parking during the hours of 7:00 a.m. to 9:00 a.m. and from 4:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. shall be prohibited on the following streets or parts of streets: ~~Raytown Road, west side only, between 63rd Street and south property line of Bowen Apartments.~~

a. **Both sides of Cedar Ave., between 58th Terrace and 59th Street. (on Court Days)**

b. **East side of Cedar Ave., from 58th Terrace and north 300'. (on Court Days)**

(3) *School parking zones.* Parking during the hours of 7:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. on weekdays while school is in session shall be prohibited on the following streets:

- a. **Both sides of 82nd Street, between Sterling and Harvard.**
- b. **South side of 83rd Street, between Harvard Ave. ~~Sterling~~ and Pershing Road.**
- c. **North side of 83rd Street between Sterling Ave. and Pershing Road.**
- ~~c. — Sterling, between 82nd Street and 84th Terrace.~~
- ~~d. — North side of 60th Terrace from 128 feet west of the centerline of Blue Ridge Boulevard to the east right-of-way line of Raytown Road.~~
- d. **East side of Sterling Ave. from 83rd Street north 150'.**
- e. **West side of Sterling Ave. from 82nd Street to 83rd Street.**
- f. **East side of Willow Ave. from 60th Terrace and south 50'.**
- g. **Both sides of Hardy Ave, between 61st Street and 61st Terrace.**

(4) **No parking during business hours. Stopping, standing or parking during business hours between 8:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. is prohibited on the following streets or parts of streets:**

- a. **West side of Ash Ave., between 63rd Street and 63rd Terrace.**
- b. **West side of Cedar Ave., between Maywood Ave. and 67th Street.**
- c. **East side of Cedar Ave., from Maywood Ave. and south 120'.**

(Code 1969, § 23-153; Ord. No. 298-70, 10-6-1970; Ord. No. 762-73, § 1, 8-21-1973; Ord. No. 952-74, § 9, 10-15-1974; Ord. No. 1571-77, §§ 2, 3, 8-16-1977; Ord. No. 2364-82, § 37, 3-2-1982; Ord. No. 3317-88, § 1, 11-1-1988; Ord. No. 3934-93, § 2, 11-3-1993)

Sec. 42-376. - Stopping, standing or parking prohibited during certain hours on certain streets.

When signs are erected in each block giving notice thereof, no person shall stop, stand, or park a vehicle between the hours specified by ordinance on any day except Sundays and public holidays within the district or upon any of the streets described by ordinance.

(Code 1969, § 23-154; Ord. No. 298-70, 10-6-1970; Ord. No. 2364-82, § 37, 3-2-1982)

Sec. 42-377. - Parking signs required.

Whenever by this chapter or any ordinance of the city, any parking time limit is imposed or parking is prohibited on designated streets, it shall be the duty of the city ~~traffic~~-engineer to erect appropriate signs giving notice thereof and no such regulations shall be effective unless said signs are erected and in place at the time of any alleged offense.

Code 1969, § 23-155; Ord. No. 298-70, 10-6-1970; Ord. No. 2364-82, § 37, 3-2-1982)

Sec. 42-378. - Parking of certain vehicles prohibited for more than two hours on residential streets.

(a) It shall be unlawful for the driver, owner, or operator of a bus, truck (except those motor vehicles commonly known as trucks one ton or less), tractor, trailer, recreational vehicle, house trailer, tractor-trailer, truck-trailer combination, road building machinery or any commercial vehicles, to park or cause

to be parked for longer than two hours in any one day on any street in a residential area, except that an operator may park said vehicle for a longer period while actually and continuously engaged in a loading or unloading, subject to all other ordinances regulating said prohibition.

(b) The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this section, shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this subsection, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:

Commercial vehicle means a motor vehicle designed or regularly used for carrying freight, merchandise, or other property or more than eight passengers and licensed in excess of 18,000 pounds.

Residential area means that area within the city limits zoned for residential use or principally used for residential purposes.

Tractor, tractor-trailer or truck-trailer combination means a self-propelled motor vehicle designed for drawing other vehicles.

Trailer means any vehicle without motive power designed for carrying property or passengers on its own structure and being drawn by a self-propelled vehicle, including a semitrailer or vehicle of the trailer type so designed and used in conjunction with a self-propelled vehicle that a considerable part of its own weight rests upon and is carried by the towing vehicle.

(c) No notice or sign reflecting said prohibition shall be required to be posted.

(Code 1969, § 23-156; Ord. No. 946-74, §§ 1-4, 10-8-1974; Ord. No. 2364-82, § 38, 3-2-1982; Ord. No. 2531-83, § 1, 5-1-1983; Ord. No. 4076-95, § 1, 6-20-1995)

Sec. 42-379. - Commercial vehicles prohibited from using certain streets.

In cases where an equally direct and convenient alternate route is provided, an ordinance may be described and signs may be erected giving notice thereof, that no persons shall operate any commercial vehicle upon streets or parts of streets so described except those commercial vehicles making deliveries thereon.

(Code 1969, § 23-157; Ord. No. 298-70, 10-6-1970; Ord. No. 2364-82, § 37, 3-2-1982)

Sec. 42-380. - Streets designated for limited commercial use.

(a) Pursuant to section 42-379, the following streets or parts of streets are designated such that no person shall operate any commercial vehicle of 24,000 pounds gross vehicle weight rating or over thereon, except those commercial vehicles making deliveries thereon:

- (1) Woodson Road from 75th Street to 78th Terrace.
- (2) 83rd Street from Raytown Road to Sterling.
- (3) Hardy from 350 Highway eastbound to 83rd Street.
- (4) Hedges from 350 Highway eastbound to 83rd Street.
- (5) Lane from 350 Highway to 67th Street.
- (6) Sterling from 83rd Street to 85th Street.

~~(7) — Woodson from 75th Street to 78th Terrace.~~

- (87) 73rd Street from Maple to Oxford.
- (98) 67th Street from Raytown Road to Woodson.
- (109) 64th Terrace from Evanston to Elm.
- (110) 76th Terrace from Raytown Road to Evanston.
- (121) Evanston from 75th Street to 76th Terrace.
- (1312) Overton from 75th Street to 76th Terrace.
- (1413) Hawthorne from 75th Street to 76th Terrace.

~~(b) Pursuant to section 42-379, the following streets or parts of streets are designated such that no person shall operate any commercial vehicle of 24,000 pounds gross vehicle weight rating or over thereon, except those commercial vehicles making deliveries thereon:~~

- ~~(1) — Woodson Road from 75th Street to 78th Terrace.~~
- ~~(2) — 83rd Street from Raytown Road to Sterling.~~
- ~~(3) — Hardy from 350 Highway eastbound to 83rd Street.~~
- ~~(4) — Hedges from 350 Highway eastbound to 83rd Street.~~
- ~~(5) — Lane from 350 Highway to 67th Street.~~
- ~~(6) — Sterling from 83rd Street to 85th Street.~~
- ~~(7) — Woodson from 75th Street to 78th Terrace.~~
- ~~(8) — 73rd Street from Maple to Oxford.~~
- ~~(9) — 67th Street from Raytown Road to Woodson.~~
- ~~(10) — 64th Terrace from Evanston to Elm.~~
- ~~(11) — 76th Terrace from Raytown Road to Evanston.~~
- ~~(12) — Evanston from 75th Street to 76th Terrace.~~
- ~~(13) — Overton from 75th Street to 76th Terrace.~~
- ~~(14) — Hawthorne from 75th Street to 76th Terrace.~~

~~(eb) Pursuant to section 42-379, the following streets or parts of streets are designated such that no person shall operate any commercial vehicle of 16,000 pounds gross vehicle weight rating or over thereon: Raytown Road from Railroad Street to Raytown Trafficway.~~

(1) Raytown Road from Railroad Street to Raytown Trafficway.

(Code 1969, § 23-158; Ord. No. 3666-91, § 1, 5-21-1991; Ord. No. 3856-93, § 6, 2-2-1993; Ord. No. 3901-93, § 1, 7-20-1993; Ord. No. 4188-96, § 1, 8-7-1996; Ord. No. 4286-97, § 1, 7-1-1997; Ord. No. 4356-98, § 1, 1-20-1998; Ord. No. 4743-01, § 1, 12-4-2001)

Secs. 42-381-42-403. - Reserved.

The 2 new areas for no parking signs, for during business hours.

